
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES - CITY OF INVER GROVE HEIGHTS 
 

Tuesday, May 3, 2016 – 7:00 p.m.  
City Hall Chambers - 8150 Barbara Avenue 

 
Commissioner Gooch called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Present: Dennis Wippermann 

Elizabeth Niemioja 
Bill Klein 
Pat Simon 
Tony Scales 
Harold Gooch  
Armando Lissarrague 
Joan Robertson 
 

Commissioners Absent: Annette Maggi (excused) 
           
Others Present:  Allan Hunting, City Planner 
             
     
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The April 5, 2016 minutes were approved as submitted. 
 
 
ALFRED WILLENBRING – CASE NO. 16-13IUP 
 
Reading of Notice 
Commissioner Simon read the public hearing notice to consider the request for an interim use 
permit to allow a contractor’s yard with outdoor storage on an A, Agricultural zoned property, for 
the property located at 1185 – 80th Street.  6 notices were mailed.   
 
Presentation of Request 
Allan Hunting, City Planner, explained the request as detailed in the report.  He advised that the 
applicant is requesting an interim use permit to allow a portion of his property to be utilized as a 
contractor’s yard with outdoor storage for a landscaping company.  The applicant is requesting the 
interim use be allowed for a period of five years.  The property is currently zoned A, Agricultural, 
which does not allow for contractor yards.  The City became aware of the business through a 
complaint received by code enforcement.  During meetings with staff to resolve the issue, the 
landowner indicated his intensions were to allow the business for a period of time until he could sell 
his land for development.  Staff suggested he apply for an interim use permit.  No buildings or 
improvements are proposed for the site.  An interim use is a temporary use of a property until a 
particular date, event, or where there is going to be a change to the character of the neighborhood.  
In this case the subject area will likely develop into commercial or high density residential once 80th 
Street is realigned and sewer is available.  Staff received comment from one property owner who 
had no objections.  Staff recommends approval of the request with the conditions listed in the 
report.     
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked how many people were notified of the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Hunting displayed a map showing the parcels that were notified and their proximity to the 
subject property.  He noted that the lots in this area are large and therefore there were only six 
within the 350 foot radius.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if there was also a sign posted on the property. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 2 
May 3, 2016 
 
 
Mr. Hunting replied a sign was not posted since this was only a temporary use and no 
changes/additions to the property were being proposed. 
 
Commissioner Lissarrague asked if staff knew whether the complaint was from a neighbor.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied he was not sure.    
 
Commissioner Lissarrague stated the complainant may not have been one of the six properties 
that were noticed. 
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if the complainant would be notified as part of the process. 
 
Mr. Hunting replied they would not be noticed as part of the application process as that was a 
separate matter.  He noted that the complaint could have come in anonymously.   
 
Commissioner Gooch asked what the property to the west was zoned which consisted of a storage 
facility.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied B-3.   
 
Commissioner Gooch asked if the applicant could request his property be rezoned to B-3 as well. 
 
Mr. Hunting replied in the affirmative, stating that entire corner was guided Community 
Commercial.   
 
Commissioner Robertson asked if the interim use permit could be shortened from the five year 
maximum.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied in the affirmative, stating the maximum was five years but if the landowner sold 
his property to someone else the interim use would disappear.   
 
Commissioner Robertson asked if the interim use permit would follow the property.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied that the interim use permit would expire when the term expired. 
 
Opening of Public Hearing 
Alfred Willenbring, 1185- - 80th Street, advised he was available to answer any questions. 
 
Commissioner Gooch asked the applicant if he read the report. 
 
Mr. Willenbring replied in the affirmative.  He advised that his renter was on a month-to-month 
lease so if the road were to come through the lease could be terminated within 60 days.  
 
Commissioner Simon asked the applicant if he was aware the use could last for up to five years. 
 
Mr. Willenbring replied in the affirmative. 
 
Commissioner Simon advised the applicant he could terminate it at any time.   
 
Mr. Willenbring stated he understood.  In regard to the previous question about the complaint, he 
advised that the complaint did not pertain to this piece of property and has since been resolved.   
 
Commissioner Gooch closed the public hearing.   



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 3 
May 3, 2016 
 
 
 
Planning Commission Recommendation 
Motion by Commissioner Klein to approve the request for an ordinance amendment to add 
‘contractor’s yard with outdoor storage’ in the A, Agricultural zoning district to the list of interim 
uses, for the property located at 1185 – 80th Street.     
 
Commissioner Wippermann was concerned about changing the ordinance and setting a precedent 
for all agriculturally zoned property.  He suggested restricting the ordinance amendment to apply 
only to property zoned A, Agricultural and guided for commercial.     
 
Commissioner Klein supported Commissioner Wippermann’s recommendation.   
 
Commissioner Scales asked if any property owner could request an interim use permit.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann reiterated that it was setting a precedent.   
 
Commissioner Gooch questioned whether we were changing the ordinance. 
 
Mr. Hunting replied they would be changing a section of the ordinance pertaining to interim uses.  
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if it was possible to restrict the ordinance change strictly to 
agriculturally zoned property guided for commercial. 
 
Commissioner Simon asked if that would be a condition of approval. 
 
Commissioner Wippermann replied it would be part of the ordinance change rather than a 
condition.  
 
Commissioner Klein stated an ordinance change typically takes requires three readings. 
 
Mr. Hunting replied this was a minor change which Council has always done in one reading.  
Approval of this would add ‘contractors yard with outdoor storage’ in the A, Agricultural zoning 
district to the list of interim uses.  An applicant would then have to get an interim use permit and 
meet the criterion.  He stated if the Commissioners were comfortable with Commissioner 
Wippermann’s suggestion they should make a recommendation and he will verify that that can be 
done.   
 
Commissioner Robertson was somewhat reluctant to add the suggested clause ‘guided for 
commercial’ as there may be other individuals of agriculturally zoned property whose land might 
eventually become developed but has not yet been guided for commercial. 
 
Commissioner Scales stated any landowner could request an interim use permit; Commissioner 
Wippermann’s recommendation would avoid setting a precedent on all agriculturally zoned 
property.   
 
Commissioner Lissarrague stated he lived in the Agricultural zoning district and agreed with 
Commissioner Wippermann’s suggestion.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann restated his suggested verbiage. 
 
Commissioner Klein restated his motion to approve the request for an ordinance amendment to 
add ‘contractor’s yard with outdoor storage’ for properties in the A, Agricultural zoning district that 
are guided commercial to the list of interim uses.   



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 4 
May 3, 2016 
 
 
Second by Robertson.   
 
Motion carried (8/0).   
 
Motion by Commissioner Klein, second by Commissioner Scales, to approve the interim use permit 
to allow a contractor’s yard with outdoor storage on an A, Agricultural zoned property, for the 
property located at 1185 – 80th Street, with the conditions listed in the report.  
 
Motion carried (8/0).  This item goes to the City Council on May 23, 2016.   
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Recommendation on Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan for a City Improvement 
Project (Argenta Trail ROW) 
Allan Hunting, City Planner, explained the request as detailed in the report.  He advised that in 
2015 Council approved a comprehensive plan amendment to adopt a realignment of Argenta Trail.  
As part of that action Dakota County was asked to prepare a joint powers agreement with the City 
addressing the acquisition and dedication of a 365 foot wide strip of land along the west side of the 
Blackstone Ridge plat for the future realignment of Argenta Trail.  That document referenced a 
payment to the owner in the amount of $2.4 million dollars.  The Planning Commission is being 
asked to make a recommendation that the expenditure of funds for this right-of-way is consistent 
with the comprehensive plan.  Staff recommends that the project expenditure be found consistent 
with the comprehensive plan.   
 
Commissioner Simon questioned why the Planning Commission was acting on this request since 
financial matters were typically not within their purview.     
 
Mr. Hunting replied that State Statute requires the Planning Commission to make a 
recommendation on capital improvement projects’ consistency with the comprehensive plan.     
 
Commissioner Klein questioned whether there would be any financial participation by the State.   
 
Mr. Hunting stated he was not involved in the financial matters and could not comment on how it 
was funded. 
 
Commissioner Klein stated he would like his comment reflected in the minutes so hopefully it could 
be answered at a later date.   
 
Commissioner Simon asked what percentage of the total would be paid by the City. 
 
Mr. Hunting replied that would be determined by City Council.   
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if the City was paying for the power line right-of-way, stating it 
appeared to be part of the 265 foot strip of land.     
 
Mr. Hunting replied in the affirmative, stating that was part of the agreement. 
 
Commissioner Wippermann asked if the power line would be relocated. 
 
Mr. Hunting replied that the power line would remain in place.  He advised the County needed 
additional land so part of the agreement was for a 265 foot corridor rather than 200.   
 



Planning Commission Minutes  Page 5 
May 3, 2016 
 
 
Motion by Commissioner Scales, second by Commissioner Robertson, that the project expenditure 
is consistent with the comprehensive plan.    
 
Motion carried (8/0).   
 
Mr. Hunting advised Council would take action on this item at one of their meetings in May 2016. 
 
Commissioner Simon asked when staff planned to hold officer elections.   
 
Mr. Hunting replied they would hold elections in June after the commissioner appointments have 
been completed.   
 
Commissioner Robertson asked when the City Directory would be updated. 
 
Ms. Fox advised it would be completed after the May commission appointments.   
 
 
The meeting was adjourned by unanimous vote at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Kim Fox  
Recording Secretary 


